
            
 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 
 

Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Roslyn Buckner                   Councilman Bob Best 
Councilman Billy Bain               Councilman Jaime Petralanda 
 
Decorum: “Any person making impertinent or slanderous remarks or who becomes boisterous while addressing the City Council, shall be barred 
from further audience before the City Council by the Mayor, unless permission to continue or again address the City Council is granted by the 
majority vote of the City Council members present.  In accordance with the foregoing, the City Council has determined that racial or ethnic slurs, 
personal attacks and comments unrelated to City matters or issues constitute prohibited comments from the podium.” 
 

CITY COUNCIL REGULAR MEETING AGENDA 
Monday, August 22, 2016 – 7:00 p.m. 

City Hall, Council Chambers, 201 Westward Drive 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call 
 
2. Invocation: Councilman Petralanda 

 
Salute to the Flag: Audience Participation 

 
3. Awards & Presentations:  
 

A) Presentation of Certificate of Sincere Appreciation Plaque to Moira Ramos in 
Recognition of 35 Years of Dedicated Service to the City of Miami Springs Finance Department 

 
B) Presentation of Certificate of Sincere Appreciation Plaque to Sgt. Thomas Kelly in 

Recognition of 35 Years of Dedicated Service to the City of Miami Springs Police Department 
 
C) Recognizing Reverend Susan Keedy for her years of service to All Angels Academy 

and Episcopal Church in Miami Springs 
 

D) Recognizing long-time Miami Springs resident Eloise Head on her 92nd birthday 
 
E) Recognizing Nicole San Martin for her Community Service at the Butterfly Garden 

in front of the Library 
 
F) Presentation by Jorge Ferrer, Bermello & Ajamil, on the Aquatic Facility Punchlist 

Completion Timeline  
 
4. Open Forum: Persons wishing to speak on items of general city business, please sign the 
register located on the speaker's stand before the meeting begins. 

 
5. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) August 1, 2016 - Workshop Meeting 
B) August 8, 2016 - Regular Meeting 

 
 



6. Reports from Boards & Commissions:  
 
 A) Board of Adjustment – Approval of Actions Taken at their Meeting of August 9, 
2016 Subject to the 10-day Appeal Period Actions by BOA 

 
7. Public Hearings: None. 
  
8. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted):  

 
A) Recommendation by Golf that Council approve an increase to the City's current 

open purchase order with Coca Cola Beverages, as a sole source provider of their products, in 
an amount not to exceed $2,000.00, for purchase of Coca Cola products for resale as funds were 
budgeted in the FY15/16 Budget pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(g) of the City Code 

 
B) Recommendation by Golf that Council approve an increase to the City's current 

open purchase order with The Anderson’s, INC, as a sole source provider and manufacturer of 
their products, in an amount not to exceed $5,000.00, for micro granulated fertilizers for the 
greens at the golf course as funds were budgeted in the FY15/16 Budget pursuant to Section 
§31.11 (E)(6)(g) of the City Code 

 
C) Recommendation by Golf that Council approve an increase to the City's current 

open purchase order with Harrell’s, piggybacking off the Miami Dade contract # 9020-1/19-1, in 
an amount not to exceed $10,000.00, for customized liquid fertilizers for the golf course as funds 
were budgeted in the FY15/16 Budget pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(g) of the City Code 

 
D) Recommendation by Golf that Council approve an increase to the City's current 

open purchase order with Howard’s Fertilizer and Chemical, utilizing the Town of Davie # B14-25 
contract, in an amount not to exceed $10,000.00, for fertilizer blends for the golf course as funds 
were budgeted in the FY15/16 Budget pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(g) of the City Code 

 
E) Recommendation by Golf that Council approve an increase to the City's current 

open purchase order with Florida Superior Sand, Inc., utilizing Miami Dade County contract # 
9408-1/14-1, in an amount not to exceed $6,000.00, for medium grade sand for the golf course 
as funds were budgeted in the FY15/16 Budget pursuant to Section §31.11 (E)(6)(g) of the City 
Code 

 
F) Recommendation by Public Works that Council approve an increase to the City’s 

current open Purchase order with Miami Tiresoles, utilizing Miami Dade County contract #15/17-
07-0220 in an amount not to exceed $3,000.00, for tire which exceeds the originally budgeted 
amount of $30,000.00 in the FY 15/16 Budget pursuant to Section §31.11(E)(6)(g) of the City 
Code 
9. Old Business:  

 
A) Appointments to Advisory Boards by the Mayor and Council Members 
 
B) East Side Parking Issue Update 
 

10. New Business:   
 
 A) Consideration of approval of a five year renewal agreement with American Traffic 
Solutions to maintain the City’s Red Light Camera Enforcement Program  



 B) Recommendation from Police that the Council approve the use of metal detectors 
by the Miami Springs Police Department at the entrance to City Hall prior to any Regular, Special 
or workshop meetings held in the Council Chambers 
 

C) Recommendation by the Police Department that Council approve an expenditure of 
$12,200.00, to City of Miami Police Training Center, the lowest responsible quote after obtaining 
three written quotes (attached), for tuition for two (2) Police Recruits this September, as funds are 
available in the FY15/16 Budget, pursuant to Section §31.11(C)(2) of the City Code 

 
D) Consideration of temporary installation of wallscape signage for future Council 

determination of related ordinance amendments 
 
E) Discussion of possible locations and the planning phases for the construction of a 

new multi-purpose facility that will include a Senior Center 
 
F)  Recommendation from Board of Parks and Parkways to renovate coral rock walls in 

the median along Morningside Drive from Navarre Street to Minola Drive 
 

11. Other Business: None. 
 
12. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney 
 
B) City Manager 
 
C) City Council 

 
13. Adjourn 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

Please visit www.miamisprings-fl.gov for current meeting schedule or follow us on       Twitter @MIAMISPRINGSFL 
******************************************************************************************************* 
Live streaming video of this meeting is available at http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/webcast. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
Anyone wishing to obtain a copy of an agenda item may contact the City Clerk at (305) 805-5006, download the complete agenda packet from www.miamisprings-

fl.gov or view the materials at City Hall during regular business hours. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

Pursuant to Florida Statute 286.0114, the City Council provides the public with a reasonable opportunity to be heard on all matters. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

If any person decides to appeal any decision of this Board with respect to any matter considered, s/he will need a record of the proceedings and for such purpose 
may need to ensure that a verbatim record of the proceedings is made, which record includes the testimony and evidence upon which the appeal is made (F. S. 

286.0105), all of which the City does not provide. 
******************************************************************************************************* 

In accordance with the Americans with Disabilities Act, persons needing a special accommodation to participate in this proceeding should contact the City Clerk, 
201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 33166.  Telephone: (305) 805-5006, no later than seven (7) days prior to the proceeding. 

******************************************************************************************************* 
Pursuant to Sec. 2-11.1 (S) of the Miami-Dade County Code and Miami Springs Code of Ordinances Chapter 33 - §33-20, all persons, firms or corporations 
employed or retained by a principal who seeks to encourage the passage, defeat, or modifications of (1) ordinance, resolution, action or decision of the City 

Council; (2) any action, decision, recommendation of any City Board or Committee; or (3) any action, decision or recommendation of City personnel during the time 
period of the entire decision-making process on such action, decision or recommendation which will be heard or reviewed by the City Council, or a City Board or 
Committee shall register with the City before engaging in any lobbying activities on forms prepared for this purpose and shall state under oath his or her name, 

business address, the name and business address of each person or entity which has employed said registrant to lobby, and the specific issue on which he or she 
has been employed to lobby.  A copy of the lobbyist registration form is available from the Office of the City Clerk. 

******************************************************************************************************* 

http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/
http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/webcast
http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/
http://www.miamisprings-fl.gov/


 
 CERTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION 
 
 Presented to 
 

MOIRA RAMOS 
ACCOUNT SYSTEM FINANCE ANALYST 

 
In recognition of 35 years and 4 months of dedicated service to the 

 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
FINANCE DEPARTMENT 

 
From April 20, 1981 to August 31, 2016. 

  
 Presented this 22nd day of August, 2016.  
 
 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

           
     Zavier M. Garcia 
             Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

   
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 



 
 CERTIFICATE OF APPRECIATION 
 
 Presented to 
 

THOMAS D. KELLY 
POLICE SERGEANT 

 
In recognition of 35 years of dedicated service to the 

 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS 
POLICE DEPARTMENT 

 
 
 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

           
     Zavier M. Garcia 
             Mayor 

 
ATTEST: 

   
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 



 
 

 CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION 
 
  

Presented to 

 
ELOISE HEAD 

 
Mrs. Head settled into Miami Springs in 1966 has been a resident of 

Miami Springs for 55 years. 
 

Mrs. Head was born on November 30, 1924 and recently celebrated 
her 92nd birthday.  

 
The City Council and citizens of Miami Springs honor a longtime 

resident and extend best wishes on her 92nd birthday. 
 
 Presented this 22nd day of August, 2016.  
 
 
 
 
 
 

CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 
        Zavier M. Garcia 
               Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
                 City Clerk 



 
 

 CERTIFICATE OF RECOGNITION 
 
 Presented to 
 

Nicole San Martin 
 

a Miami Springs resident and 
student at Our Lady of Lourdes Academy  

who revitalized the Butterfly Garden 
in front of the Miami Springs Branch Library 

by planting approximately 20 plants  
for academic community service hours and  

to benefit the butterfly population  
which is becoming less abundant  

due to habitat destruction. 
  
 
 Presented this 22nd day of August, 2016.  
 

 
CITY OF MIAMI SPRINGS, FLORIDA 

 
     Zavier M. Garcia 
             Mayor 

ATTEST: 

 
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
                 City Clerk 





























































































 
 1 

 
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
 

Workshop Meeting Minutes 
Monday, August 1, 2016, 2015 6:00 p.m. 

 
Council Chambers at City Hall 

201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 
 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 6:20 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
 
Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Roslyn Buckner 
Councilman Bob Best 
Councilman Billy Bain 
Councilman Jaime Petralanda 
 
City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso 
City Planner Chris Heid 
Elderly Services Director Karen Rosson 
Public Works Director Tom Nash 
Golf Director Paul O’Dell 
Golf Superintendent Laurie Bland 
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria 
 
2. Invocation: Offered by Councilman Bain 
 

Salute to the Flag: The audience participated. 
 
3. Workshop on Proposed Fiscal Year 2016-2017 Budget 
 
 I. Opening Remarks by City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso 
 
City Manager Alonso introduced the upcoming workshop and stated that the upcoming 
budget discussions offers Council various options and decisions required to finalize the 
FY2016-2017 budget. He presented a statement based on the current millage rate of 
7.500, revenues of $15,965,158. The proposed budget reflects at the recommended 
millage rate a surplus of $100,775.  There are no reduction in services and no new 
outsourced services.  The new proposed budget includes a proposed COLA increase of 
3% for staff excluding the City Manager and a 2% pay increase for all police uniformed 
officers according to the contract, continues a 1% deduction of pension contributions for 
police officers, a payout of $28,000 to two retiring Public Works employees, the budget 
proposes upgrades to police vehicles, City infrastructure improvements, and among other 



 
 2 

items being proposed in the upcoming budget. 
 

II. City Council 
 
City Manager/Finance Director Alonso stated that the budget shows a $18,305 decrease in 
the Council proposed budget.  He stated that the decrease is due to the Miami Springs 90th 
birthday celebration which was not included in this year’s budget since it was in last years’ 
budget.  Council budget includes $32,500 in upcoming annual events, $35,000 for the 
Curtiss Mansion, and $4,800 for the Historic Museum’s storage costs. 
 
Presentations were provided by Tom Curtis for the River Cities Festival, Richard Wheeler 
for CMI the Curtiss Mansion, Ralph Wakefield for the Pelican Playhouse, and Beverly 
Roetz from the Historical Society. 

 
III. City Clerk 

 
The City Clerk’s budget is $35,797 more than last year. The increase includes $20,000 for 
the 2017 City Elections.  The City Clerk explained the reduction in maintenance due to the 
software program that is used for records management.  There were no further additions to 
the Clerk budget.  

 
IV. City Manager 

 
Mr. Alonso stated that the City Manager’s budget is $22,990 lower mainly due to personnel 
costs.  He stated that the City Manager budget includes $45,000 for lobbyist services.   
There were no further changes in this portion of the budget. 

 
V. Finance 

 
City Manager/Finance Director Alonso stated that there 15% decrease due to the 
combination of City Manager/Finance Director positions.  The department includes an 
additional $25,000 in professional services for contract negotiations with the Police Union.   
 
Assistant to City Manager Tammy Romero explained that on the wish list is a request for 
an electronic marquee sign on the Circle for Council’s consideration.  There were no further 
changes to the budget.  

 
VI. Elderly Services 

 
City Manager/Finance Director Alonso stated that the Elderly Services budget is 
approximately $38,326 or 8% lower than the previous year. The proposed budget includes 
$49,545 for the City to fund the continuation of fitness, Tai-Chi, and drumming classes as 
well as $18,112 to continue funding of weekend meals for residents.  The proposed budget 
includes $5,100 for a new ice machine and a stand up freezer for the next fiscal year. 
 



 
 3 

Elderly Services Director Karen Rosson answered Council’s questions to their satisfaction. 
There were no further discussions on this section of the budget. 

 
VII. Planning  

 
Mr. Alonso stated that the proposed budget is $10,354 or 12% lower than the current year. 
This reduction was in professional services for a water study that was completed in the 
previous year.    
 
Zoning and Planning Director Chris Heid addressed the Council’s questions.  There was no 
further discussion on this portion of the budget. 

 
VIII. Public Services Department 

 
i. Administration 

 
Mr. Alonso stated that the Administration budget is approximately $20,949 lower than the 
current year. There were no significant changes in this portion of the budget. 

 
ii. Streets/Streetlights Division 

  
City Manager/Finance Director Alonso explained the budget is $45,620 higher or 11.5% 
than the current year. Budget includes $50,000 for tree planting city-wide. 
 

iii. Public Properties  
  
City Manager/Finance Director Alonso stated that the Public Properties budget is about 
$8,164 lower than the current year. 
 
City Council requested that the public rights-of-way be maintained trimmed even if Public 
Works Director Nash needs to hire additional staff.  The Public Works Director stated that 
he is proposing two additional part-time personnel to assist in the maintenance of public 
property.   

 
iv. Building Maintenance 

 
City Manager/Finance Director Alonso said the department is $17,914 higher than the 
current year.  This includes City Hall and Fire Station repairs of the air condition units. 
 
There were no further questions for this section of the budget. 

 
v. Fleet Maintenance 

 
Mr. Alonso explained that the Fleet Maintenance budget is $4,561 lower than the current 
year.  This includes a reduction in current fleet maintenance contract services. 



 
 4 

 
vi. Road and Transportation 

 
City Manager/Finance Director Alonso stated that the Road and Transportation, Sanitation 
and Stormwater funds do not impact the General Fund. The proposed budget is $39,216 or 
5.5% lower that FY2015-2016.  The Road and Transportation fund includes funds from the 
Citizens Independent Transportation Trust (CITT) and the projected revenue for next year 
is approximately $672,488. 

 
vii. Sanitation 

 
The Sanitation fund is self-sufficient as it is funded through the sanitation fees that are 
collected on an annual basis, according to Mr. Alonso.  The proposed budget is $53,288 
lower than last year.   

 
viii. Stormwater 

  
Mr. Alonso explained that the Stormwater fund includes fees collected through the water 
bill.  The current fee per residential unit is $3.68 per month, which has not increased since 
2001.  The City hired a consultant to work on a Stormwater Utility Study which will suggest 
a possible increase in the charges per residential unit for services. 
 

IX. Golf 
 
City Manager/Finance Director Alonso stated that the Golf Department budget is $34,551 
or 1.9% lower than last year. Mr. Alonso also reminded Council that the food and beverage 
services will be a revenue generator.  An RFP is currently being prepared for the services 
and should be on-board by January 2017. 
 
Golf Director Paul O’Dell answered Council’s questions.  Golf Course Maintenance 
Superintendent Laurie Bland was present to answer questions regarding the golf 
maintenance budget; no changes were made. 
 
4. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 9:25 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 5 

 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
this 22nd day of August, 2016. 
 
 
           
Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
 
 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 
MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 

 
 



 
 1 

 
 
  
 City of Miami Springs, Florida 

City Council Meeting 
 

Regular Meeting Minutes 
Monday, August 8, 2016 7:00 p.m. 

Council Chambers at City Hall 
201 Westward Drive, Miami Springs, Florida 

 
1. Call to Order/Roll Call: The meeting was called to order by the Mayor at 7:10 p.m.  
 
Present were the following:  
 
Mayor Zavier M. Garcia 
Vice Mayor Roslyn Buckner  
Councilman Bob Best  
Councilman Billy Bain 
Councilman Jaime A. Petralanda 
 
Assistant City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso 
City Attorney Jan K. Seiden 
City Clerk Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria 
Chief Armando Guzman 
IT Director Jorge Fonseca 
Elderly Services Director Karen Rosson 
 
2. Invocation: Offered by Mayor Garcia 
 

Salute to the Flag: Members of the audience led the Pledge of Allegiance and 
Salute to the Flag 

 
3. Awards & Presentations:  
 

A)  Presentation of Certificate of Sincere Appreciation Plaque to William 
“Dennis” O’Neal in Recognition of 10 Years of Dedicated Service to the City of Miami 
Springs Public Services Department 
 
Mayor Garcia presented a plaque for Mr. O’Neal’s years of service to the City.  Mr. 
O’Neal shared a few words and thanked everyone for their support over the years. 
  
 B) Officer of the Month for June 2016 presented to Detective Ramon Tamargo 
 
After stating the events that transpired that led to this recognition of both detectives, 
Chief Guzman presented Detective Tamargo with an Officer of the Month plaque 
recognizing him for his efforts in the recent case. 



 
 2 

 
C) Officer of the Month for June 2016 presented to CST Officer Jason Hall 

 
After introductory remarks, Chief Guzman was proud to announce that CST Officer 
Hall as Officer of the Month and was one of the detectives that assisted in a recent 
major police case that led to several arrests. 
 
 D) Recognizing long-time Miami Springs resident Manny Carneri on his 90th 
birthday 
 
Mayor Garcia presented Mr. Carneri with a certificate of recognition in celebration of 
his 90th birthday. 
 
 E) Yard of the Month Award for August 2016 - Jason & Melinda Usallan - 388 
Payne Drive 
 
Mr. and Mrs. Usallan were not present to receive their certificate for Yard of the 
Month. 
  
 F) Presentation from Renovate America to establish a Clean Energy Program in 
which the City of Miami Springs is the initiating and regulating entity for the new “district”, in 
accordance with Section 163.08 Florida Statutes as an addition to the program approved 
by the City in October 2014 with The Clean Energy Coastal Corridor Pace District 
 
John Thomas with Renovate America provided a handout on the organization, which 
is the largest provider of PACE financing in America.  He requested that Council 
consider give residents an option on financing energy efficient products in their 
homes.  He also requested that Council join an additional PACE district in 
partnership with Renovate America.  Mr. Thomas answered the several questions 
from the City Council. The City Council requested that Mr. Thomas work with 
Administration and the City Attorney to come up with a mutual agreement for their 
consideration. 
 
4. Open Forum:  The following members of the public addressed the City Council:  
Evelio Cabrera, 459 Hunting Lodge Drive. 

 
5. Approval of Council Minutes: 

 
A) June 27, 2016 - Regular Meeting 
B) July 18, 2016 - Special Meeting 
C) July 28, 2016 – Special Meeting  
 

Councilman Bain moved to approve the minutes of June 27, 2016, July 18, 2016, and 
July 28, 2016.  Councilman Best seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call 
vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Buckner, Councilman Best, Councilman 
Bain, Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 

 
6. Reports from Boards & Commissions: None at this time. 



 
 3 

 
7. Public Hearings: None at this time. 
 
8. Consent Agenda: (Funded and/or Budgeted):   

 
A) Approval of the City Attorney’s Invoice for July 2016 in the Amount of 

$12,204.00 
 
B) Recommendation by Police that Council approve an expenditure to Royal 

Rent-A Car Systems of Florida, the lowest responsible quote of $17,088.00, for the 
monthly rental of two vehicles (for a twelve month period), as these funds qualify for 
expenditure from the Police Law Enforcement Trust Fund, as funds were approved in the 
FY 15/16 Budget pursuant to Section §31.11(C)(2) of the City Code 

 
C) Recommendation by the Police Department that Council approve an 

expenditure to TBS Miami, LLC, as a sole source provider, in the amount of $11,972.24, 
for new office furniture for the Investigations Unit, as there is only one source (letter 
attached) for the required custom furniture and funds are available in the FY15/16 Budget, 
pursuant to Section §31.11(E)(6)(c) of the City Code 
 

D) Recommendation by Golf that Council approve an increase to the City’s 
current open purchase order with Acushnet, in an amount not to exceed $2,000.00, for 
Titleist and Foot Joy merchandise to be re-sold in the golf pro shop as funds were 
budgeted in the FY15/16 Budget, pursuant to Section §31.11(E)(6)(g) of the City Code  
 
 E)  Recommendation by Public Works that Council approve an increase to the 
City’s current open purchase order with Micar Trucking, Inc. utilizing Miami-Dade County 
under contract #4056-0/16 (attached) in an amount not to exceed $5,000.00, for road rock 
which exceeds the originally budgeted amount of $9,500.00 in the FY15/16 Budget, 
pursuant to Section §31.11(E)(6)(g) of the City Code (CITT Funds) 
 
John Souder, address is exempt from the record, had requested further discussion 
of Item D.  He inquired whether the merchandise being resold was making a profit to 
the City. 
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the Consent Agenda Item D.  Councilman 
Petralanda seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as 
follows: Vice Mayor Buckner, Councilman Best, Councilman Bain, Petralanda and 
Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
Councilman Petralanda pulled Consent Agenda Item E for further discussion.  He 
wanted to clarify that the amount requested is over the amount that was  originally 
budgeted.  Mr. Alonso said yes it is and that these funds are coming from CITT 
funds. 
 
Councilman Petralanda moved to approve the Consent Agenda Item E.  Councilman 
Best seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as 



 
 4 

follows: Vice Mayor Buckner, Councilman Best, Councilman Bain, Petralanda and 
Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
 
Councilman Bain moved to approve the Consent Agenda Items A, B, and C.  
Councilman Petralanda seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The 
vote was as follows: Vice Mayor Buckner, Councilman Best, Councilman Bain, 
Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 
  
9. Old Business:  
 
 A) Appointments/Re-appointments to Advisory Boards by the Mayor and Council 
Members 
 
No appointments were made at this time. 
 

B) Request by Councilman Petralanda to allow audio/video pre-recording of 
public comments/open forum 

 
Donna Hernandez, 769 Pinecrest Drive and John Souder, address exempt from 
Florida Statute, addressed the Council. 
 
Discussion ensued, Councilman Petralanda moved to approve Option #2, with the 
following amendments allow videos of two minutes or less, allow ten videos per 
Council meeting, and to be played during open forum.  Councilman Bain seconded 
the motion, which carried 4-1 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Buckner, Councilman Bain, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor Garcia voting Yes; 
Councilman Best voting No. 
 
10. New Business:  
 

A)  Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Miami 
Springs Providing For The Fourth Budget Amendment To The FY2015-2016 Budget; By 
Transferring Designated Fund Balance Funds To The General Fund And The Special 
Revenue And Capital Projects Fund; Providing Intent; Specifying Compliance With 
Budgetary Processes And Procedures; Effective Date 
 
City Attorney Jan Seiden read the item for the record. 
 
Vice Mayor Buckner moved to approve the Resolution.  Councilman Best seconded 
the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Buckner, Councilman Best, Councilman Bain, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor 
Garcia voting Yes. 

 
B) Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs 

Requesting That The Florida Legislature Amend Florida Statutes, Section 775.085, To 
Include Enhanced Penalties For Felonies And Misdemeanors Committed Against Law 
Enforcement Officers, Firefighters, And Emergency Services Personnel Due To Their 



 
 5 

Employment Status; Instructions To The City Clerk; Severability; Effective Date 
 

City Attorney Jan Seiden read the item for the record. 
 
Vice Mayor Buckner moved to approve the Resolution.  Councilman Best seconded 
the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Buckner, Councilman Best, Councilman Bain, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor 
Garcia voting Yes. 
 

C) Resolution – A Resolution Of The City Council Of The City Of Miami Springs 
Amending The Current Schedule Of Charges For The Use Of City Recreation Facilities 
And Related Services; Effective Date 
 
City Attorney Jan Seiden read the item for the record. 
 
Councilman Petralanda moved to approve the Resolution.  Vice Mayor Buckner 
seconded the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: 
Vice Mayor Buckner, Councilman Best, Councilman Bain, Councilman Petralanda 
and Mayor Garcia voting Yes. 

 
D) Councilman Petralanda’s request for Installation of a light pole at N. Royal 

Poinciana and the catwalk 
 
The City Manager/Finance Director William Alonso read the staff memo for the 
record.   
 
Ms. Diaz, representing the Miami-Dade Public Schools Adult Education Program, 
addressed the Council. 
 
Councilman Petralanda moved to approve the request for installation of the light 
pole.  Councilman Bain seconded the motion, which failed 2-3 on roll call vote.  The 
vote was as follows: Councilman Best and Councilman Petralanda voting Yes; Vice 
Mayor Buckner, Councilman Bain, and Mayor Garcia voting No. 
 
Mayor Garcia encouraged Ms. Diaz and Councilman Petralanda to discuss the 
installation of the light pole with the School Board to see if they are willing to assist 
in the funding of the proposed project. 

  
E) Request by Pelican Playhouse for Council approval for PG-13 production in 

November 2016. 
 
This item was heard after 10F.  Ralph Wakefield, director of the Pelican Playhouse, 
addressed the City Council. 
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the request.  Councilman Petralanda seconded 
the motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Buckner, Councilman Best, Councilman Bain, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor 



 
 6 

Garcia voting Yes. 
 
F) Request for funding by Elaine Martin for Police services for the Childhood 

Cancer 5K on September 24, 2016 
 
This item was heard immediately after Old Business Item 9B. 
 
Councilman Best moved to approve the request.  Vice Mayor Buckner seconded the 
motion, which carried 5-0 on roll call vote.  The vote was as follows: Vice Mayor 
Buckner, Councilman Best, Councilman Bain, Councilman Petralanda and Mayor 
Garcia voting Yes. 

 
G) Consideration of the Board of Parks and Parkways Recommendation to 

recognize Nicole San Martin for her Community Service at the Butterfly Garden in front of 
the Library 
 
The City Council gave general consensus to recognize Ms. San Martin at an 
upcoming Council meeting.   
 
11.  Other Business:  
 
 A) Fiscal Year 2015-2016 Budget Status Report – Third Quarter (Unaudited) 
 
City Manager/Finance Director is slightly outdated because of the Golf Course payoff 
and that the Fund Balance is maintained at $4 million. 
 
 B) First Month Aquatic Facility Revenue Report 
 
This item was heard after Item 10C. 
 
Recreation Director Omar Luna gave a report on the first month’s financial activity 
for the aquatic facility.  Revenues had totaled $39,000 for the month of July.  He 
reported that future bookings have been scheduled and that future revenue 
projections are in line and look very good. 
 
The Mayor inquired about the Lunacon punchlist to finalize the pool.  He requested 
that an update be provided at the August 22nd Council meeting. 
 

 12. Reports & Recommendations: 
 

A) City Attorney  
 
City Attorney Seiden said he missed seeing Ron Gorland sitting across from him during the 
meetings, but knows that William Alonso will do an excellent job as City Manager.  He also 
welcomed Tammy Romero to the dais and wished her good luck on her new position.   
 
 



 
 7 

B) City Manager 
 
No report at this time. 
 

C) City Council 
 
Councilman Best had no report at this time. 
 
Vice Mayor Buckner had nothing to report at this time. 
 
Councilman Petralanda had nothing to report at this time. 
 
Councilman Bain thanked everyone that turned out at the Golf Course ceremonial burning 
of the Golf course note since it was finally paid off.  He stated that he and his family had a 
great time at the pool this weekend.  He encouraged members of the Council to bring 
forward their ideas for discussion at Council meetings since it is the only time they can 
discuss things.  He appreciated that Councilman Petralanda brought forward his idea on 
the video recordings of open forum comments and that he said that he did not deserve to 
be criticized for coming up with an idea for consideration.     
 
Mayor Garcia requested that he would like the event list that was produced previously to 
start again so that the City Clerk can send these events to the City Council as electronic 
calendar invites. 
 
13. Adjourn 
 
There being no further business to be discussed the meeting was adjourned at 9:25 p.m. 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 



 
 8 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
           
Erika Gonzalez-Santamaria, MMC 
City Clerk 
 
Adopted by the City Council on 
This 22nd day of August, 2016. 
 
 
           
Zavier M. Garcia, Mayor 
 
PURSUANT TO FLORIDA STATUTES 286.0105, THE CITY HEREBY ADVISES THE PUBLIC THAT IF A PERSON DECIDES TO APPEAL ANY DECISION 
MADE BY THIS COUNCIL WITH RESPECT TO ANY MATTER CONSIDERED AT ITS MEETING OR HEARING, HE OR SHE WILL NEED A RECORD OF 
THE PROCEEDINGS, AND THAT FOR SUCH PURPOSE, THE AFFECTED PERSON MAY NEED TO ENSURE THAT VERBATIM RECORD OF THE 
PROCEECING IS MADE, WHICH RECORD INCLUDES THE TESTIMONY AND EVIDENCE UPON WHICH THE APPEAL IS TO BE BASED THIS NOTICE 
DOES NOT CONSTITUTE CONSENT BY THE CITY FOR THE INTRODUCTION OR ADMISSION OF OTHERWISE INADMISSIBLE OR IRRELEVANT 
EVIDENCE, NOR DOES IT AUTHORIZE CHALLENGES OR APPEALS NOT OTHERWISE ALLOWED BY LAW. 
 
 
 

 



 

Minutes – Board of Adjustment  Tuesday, August 9, 2016 
 

 
City of Miami Springs, Florida 

 
The Board of Adjustment met in Regular Session at 6:30 p.m., on Tuesday, August 9, 
2016 in the Council Chambers at City Hall. 
 
 
1) Call to Order/Roll Call 
 
The meeting was called to order at 6:34 p.m.    
 
The following were present: Chairman Manuel Pérez-Vichot  
     Vice Chair Ernie Aloma 
     Bob Calvert 

Juan Molina 
     Martin L. Marquez 
     Alejandro Gonzalez 
      
      
Also present:    Zoning and Planning Director Chris Heid 
     Board Secretary Juan D. Garcia 
 
 
2)  Approval of Minutes 
 
The minutes for the June 6, 2016 meeting were approved as written. 
 
Board member Calvert moved to approve the minutes as written. Board member 
Molina seconded the motion, which passed unanimously 5-0 on voice vote. 
 
 
3) Swearing In of All Witnesses and Zoning and Planning Director:  
 
Board Secretary Garcia swore in the Zoning and Planning Director, the applicants or 
representatives of the applicants who would testify should the Board have any 
questions. 
 
4) New Business:  
 
 

A) Case # 06-V-16 
 ENNA ALCAINE 
 919 HUNTING LODGE DRIVE 
 Zoning: R-1A, RESIDENTIAL SINGLE FAMILY 
  



 

Minutes – Board of Adjustment  Tuesday, August 9, 2016 2 

 
 
The applicant is seeking a variance in order to construct an addition to the existing non-
conforming side yard setback of the residence for a new addition to a single family 
home.  
 
Zoning and Planning Director Heid read his recommendation to the Board. In his 
recommendation, Zoning and Planning Director Heid noted that this was a project that 
was previously recommended favorably by the Board of Adjustments and approved by 
the City Council. He added that the applicant did not obtain the building permit in time 
frame that was required and because of this she is resubmitting for the same variance 
that was previously requested. 
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot asked if there were any correspondence received in favor or against 
this project. 
 
Zoning and Planning Director Heid informed the Board that no correspondences were 
received regarding this project. 
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot noted that with the addition that is being requested, the house would 
have 5 bed rooms. Chair Pérez-Vichot asked Zoning and Planning Director Heid if they 
would have the required amount of parking necessary as stated in the City’s Code. 
 
Zoning and Planning Director clarified that the applicant needs three parking spaces, 
which the applicant has. The house currently has a garage, as well as a 56 foot drive 
way which is more than adequate. 
 
Board member Calvert asked Zoning and Planning Director Heid if the front yard met 
the required green space area. Zoning and Planning Director Heid responded that it did 
meet the requirements for green space area as required by the City’s Code. 
 
Board member Molina asked why the applicant had let the approval elapse multiple 
times. 
 
Carlos Fox, the applicant’s son-in-law, explained that in 2002 the applicant’s husband 
passed away and that delayed the projected. Last year when the project was 
resubmitted for the second time, there were problems with the architect as well as 
personal health issues. For this current request for the variance, the plans have been 
completed and everything is ready to finally go through with the project.  
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot asked if there were any other comments from members of the Board 
or the audience. There were no comments at this time. 
 
Board member Molina moved to approve the variance requested with the three 
conditions listed in the Zoning and Planning Director’s recommendation. Vice 
Chair Aloma seconded the motion, which passed unanimously 5-0 on voice vote. 
The vote was as follows: Board member Calvert, Board member Molina, Board 
member Marquez, Vice Chair Aloma, and Chair Pérez-Vichot voting Yes. 
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot advised the applicant of the 10 day appeal period. 
 
 
 
 



 

Minutes – Board of Adjustment  Tuesday, August 9, 2016 3 

B) Case # 08-V-16 
 MELISSA & RICHARD BENNETTI 
 1171 NIGHTINGALE AVENUE 
 Zoning: R-1B, RESIDENTIAL SINGLE FAMILY 
  

 
The applicant is seeking a variance in ordered to construct an addition that continues 
the existing non-conforming side yard setback of the residence for a new addition to a 
single family home.   
 
Zoning and Planning Director Heid read his recommendation to the Board. In his 
recommendation he noted that this project to add a second floor addition to the property 
and to continue the existing non-conforming side yard setback. 
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot asked if there were any comments from the audience or any Board 
member. There were no comments at this time. 
 
Vice Chair Aloma moved to approve the variances with the three conditions that 
were listed in the Zoning and Planning Director’s recommendation. Board 
member Calvert seconded the motion, which passed 5-0 on voice vote. The vote 
was as follows: Board member Calvert, Board member Molina, Board member 
Marquez, Board Alternate Gonzalez and Vice Chair Aloma voting Yes. 
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot advised the applicant of the 10 day appeal period. 
 
 
5) Old Business: None. 
 
 
6) Adjournment 
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot took a moment to address the Board regarding the procedures of 
Form 8B, Memorandum of Voting Conflict for County, Municipal, and Other Local Public 
Officers. He stated that he recently submitted a Form 8B for the previous Board of 
Adjustment meeting on June 6, 2016. Chair Pérez-Vichot also made reference to a 
letter written by Board member Marquez shortly after the June 6 meeting, which was 
submitted to the Miami-Dade County Commission on Ethics and Public Trust.  He 
indicated that the letter written by Board member Marquez questioned the procedures 
that took place during the June 6 meeting of which Chair Pérez-Vichot had excused 
himself from voting, and making negative references to the integrity of the Board. He 
clarified that when filing Form 8B for voting conflict, it does not require for the person to 
leave the room, nor the dais, but simply does not allow the person with the voting 
conflict to cast a vote.  
 
Board member Marquez questioned the timing and motives of Chair Pérez-Vichot’s 
comments and asked if this was a matter of politics or part of the Board meeting.  
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot explained to Board member Marquez that he is making these 
comments because the Boards integrity was questioned and he believes they need to 
be addressed. 
 



 

Minutes – Board of Adjustment  Tuesday, August 9, 2016 4 

Vice Chair Aloma added that he welcomes differences of opinions and believes it is 
good for the Board, but agreed that the letter that was written was inaccurate. Vice 
Chair Aloma cautioned Board member Marquez about spreading lies about him and the 
rest of the Board members. 
 
Board member Marquez acknowledged Vice Chair Aloma’s comments.   
 
Chair Pérez-Vichot agreed with Vice Chair Aloma’s comments and added that if the 
Board would have asked him to step out of the meeting during the discussion of the 
item that he had submitted the form for, he would not have had an issue in doing so. 
 
There was no further business to be discussed and the meeting was adjourned at 6:59 
p.m.  
 
 
Respectfully submitted: 
 
 
                                                                  
Juan D. Garcia                                                                        
Board Secretary                                                                          
 
 
Adopted by the Board on                                                         
this       day of             , 2016.                                                  
 
 
                                                      
Manny Perez-Vichot, Chair 
 
 
Words -stricken through- have been deleted.  Underscored words represent changes. 
All other words remain unchanged. 
 
************************************************************************** 
 “The comments, discussions, recommendations and proposed actions of City Citizen 
Advisory Boards do not constitute the policy, position, or prospective action of the City, 
which may only be established and authorized by an appropriate vote or other action of 
the City Council”. 
************************************************************************** 






































































































	Agenda Summary - August 22, 2016
	Agenda Summary p. 2
	Agenda Summary p. 3

	3A) Certificate of Sincere Appreciation Plaque to Moira Ramos 
	3B) Certificate of Sincere Appreciation Plaque to Sgt. Thomas Kelly 
	3D) Recognizing long-time Miami Springs resident Eloise Head on her 92nd birthday
	3E) Nicole San Martin for her Community Service at the Butterfly Garden in front of the Library
	3F) Presentation by Jorge Ferrer, Bermello & Ajamil, on the Aquatic Facility PunchlistCompletion Timeline
	5A) August 1, 2016 - Workshop Meeting
	5B) August 8, 2016 - Regular Meeting
	6A) Board of Adjustment – Approval of Actions Taken at their Meeting of August 9,2016 Subject to the 10-day Appeal Period Actions by BOA
	8A) Approve an increase with Coca Cola Beverages 
	8B) Approve an increase with Anderson’s, INC 
	8C) Approve an increase with Harrell’s
	8D) Approve an increase with Howard’s Fertilizer and Chemical
	8E) Approve an increase with Florida Superior Sand, Inc.
	8F) Approve an increase with Miami Tiresoles
	9A) Appointments to Advisory Boards by the Mayor and Council Members
	9B) East Side Parking Issue Update
	10A) Consideration of approval of a five year renewal agreement with American TrafficSolutions to maintain the City’s Red Light Camera Enforcement Program
	10B) Approve the use of metal detectors by the Miami Springs Police Department at the entrance to City Hall prior to any Regular, Specialor workshop meetings held in the Council Chambers
	10C) Approve an expenditure of$12,200.00, to City of Miami Police Training Center
	10D) Consideration of temporary installation of wallscape signage for future Councildetermination of related ordinance amendments
	10E) Discussion of possible locations and the planning phases for the construction of anew multi-purpose facility that will include an adult day care center (Senior Center)
	10F) Recommendation from Board of Parks and Parkways to renovate coral rock walls inthe median along Morningside Drive from Navarre Street to Minola Drive

